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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me call this

          3  meeting of the Governmental Operations Committee to

          4  order.

          5                 I am Council Member Bill Perkins, the

          6  Chair of the Committee, and I'm joined by my

          7  colleagues who are members of this Committee.

          8                 To my far left, physically and

          9  politically, I want to introduce Councilwoman

         10  Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx. Slightly to her

         11  right, politically and physically, Councilman

         12  Addabbo, from Queens. Coming closer to my right,

         13  Councilman Vallone, Jr., of Queens. Our Majority

         14  Whip also from Queens, Councilman Comrie. One of our

         15  senior members, coming from the Borough of Kings,

         16  Councilman Nelson.

         17                 Also joining me is our staff, Janet.

         18                 What is your last name, Janet?

         19                 MS. FORD: Ford.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Janet Ford.

         21                 I always forget your last name.

         22                 Other members of the Committee will

         23  be joining us shortly. We will be having testimony

         24  with regard to two bills before us today. One is

         25  Intro. 68, a local law to amend the Administrative
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          2  Code of the City of New York in relation to the

          3  transfer of Council Members' chairs at determination

          4  of office.

          5                 And the other is Intro. 102, a local

          6  law to amend the New York City Charter in relation

          7  to the custody and control of City Records of

          8  historical, research, cultural or other important

          9  value.

         10                 We will begin today's hearing with

         11  Intro. 102. Again, a bill with regard to the

         12  municipal archives. This bill stems from a recent

         13  hearing that we had on the 20th of February, it was

         14  an oversight hearing in response to broad concerns

         15  about the so-called Giuliani documents which were

         16  not as traditioned as generally accepted

         17  interpretation of the Charter which suggests that

         18  they be turned immediately over, directly over to

         19  the municipal archives.

         20                 Based on that hearing this particular

         21  piece of legislation was developed and today we will

         22  begin our hearing with regard to this testimony, and

         23  our first witness will be a witness that represents

         24  the Administration, the Commissioner for the Law

         25  Department, Corporation Counsel Michael Cardozo.
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          2                 Thank you very much for responding to

          3  our request. We will swear you in at this time and

          4  then hear from you in terms of your testimony.

          5                 MS. FORD: Do you swear or affirm that

          6  the testimony you each are about to give is the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. CARDOZO: I do.

          9                 MS. FORD: Please state your name and

         10  position for the record.

         11                 MR. CARDOZO: Michael A. Cardozo,

         12  Corporation Counsel of the City of New York.

         13                 May I proceed?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Proceed, please.

         15                 MR. CARDOZO: It's a pleasure to be

         16  here today to discuss with you the issue of access

         17  to records of former public officials.

         18                 I distributed a letter to you

         19  outlining our position with respect to 102, but what

         20  I would like to do in my time here today is lay out

         21  what I think are some principals that I think we

         22  could work together on to solve the issue that was

         23  alluded to.

         24                 And let me say at the outset, the

         25  basic position of the Bloomberg Administration is
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          2  that we believe in open government, open government

          3  as it goes forward, and when Bloomberg officials

          4  leave office, and in accordance with that principal,

          5  we believe we should try to effect legislation that

          6  would see to it that records are preserved an

          7  catalogued in an expeditious and professional

          8  manner, after which they would be made available to

          9  the public, that in the interim any such records

         10  should be available to the public through Freedom of

         11  Information Law requests, and that at the same time

         12  we should strive to achieve legislation that would

         13  be cost effective and not impose any unnecessary

         14  economic burden on the City of New York.

         15                 So, I'd like to suggest to the

         16  Committee certain basic points that we think could

         17  be reflected in a legislative approach going forward

         18  to avoid in the future any controversy that might

         19  exist over access to records of former officials.

         20                 Principle number one: That the

         21  legislation could say that the City could contract

         22  with an established entity that has demonstrated

         23  experience in the archiving field. Legislation could

         24  lay out certain minimal standards that that entity

         25  would have to meet, an established library,
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          2  institutions that have historically over some

          3  specified period of time been in the archiving

          4  business, and I would suggest that the legislation

          5  should not limit this to a public entity. In fact,

          6  it might be the most effective and the most cost

          7  efficient way to provide that a contract could be

          8  entered into with a private institution, a private

          9  university library, for example, as long as that

         10  institution met basic past standards of performance.

         11                 So, principle one: I would then

         12  suggest, to reemphasize, is that the City agency

         13  responsible, DORIS, should be allowed to contract

         14  with an established entity with experience in

         15  archiving.

         16                 Principle number two: The papers to

         17  be archived should be those that DORIS deems to be

         18  of historical significance. That's what the Charter

         19  says. I don't think it's in any of our interest to

         20  say that every single piece of paper that was

         21  generated in a mayoral administration in four years,

         22  the records of a particular litigation or things

         23  that have no historical significance. We don't want

         24  to inundate any archival process with that.

         25                 But the decision as to what is of
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          2  historical significance, should be the decision

          3  that's made by DORIS.

          4                 The third principal, let's be sure we

          5  can come up together with a way that this would not

          6  impose any unneeded economic burden on the City, and

          7  by that I mean we need to create a mechanism that

          8  will encourage private funding, or private

          9  donations, so that the archiving process can go

         10  forward consistent with the interest of the public,

         11  but not impose a need for DORIS to have additional

         12  staff, particularly at a time that we all face

         13  fiscal constraints.

         14                 Principle four: While the archiving

         15  process is going forward, the legislation, I would

         16  suggest, should say that the City should be able to

         17  have immediate access to the papers for its own

         18  ongoing use.

         19                 Obviously, simply because a Mayor may

         20  change from December 31 to January 1, doesn't mean

         21  that the records that were generated on December 30

         22  are not needed. And, so, unlike what I think is in

         23  the bill, the proposed bill, I think we have to have

         24  legislation that would reflect the need for

         25  flexibility.
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          2                 Mayor Bloomberg certainly needed

          3  immediate access to the records of the Giuliani

          4  Administration in 2001. We wouldn't want those

          5  records to be off being archived, and, so, we need

          6  to have legislation that would recognize this

          7  tension.

          8                 Clearly, any legislation should

          9  provide that the public access to the records while

         10  they're being archived should continue to be

         11  governed by the FOIL law, and that while a private

         12  agency might be doing the archiving, any public

         13  person, any person of the public could seek access

         14  to the records through the usual FOIL request, a

         15  request that DORIS, with the advice of the

         16  Corporation Counsel, should determine whether or not

         17  it should be met, is required to be met. And to

         18  ensure that these principles are met, I would

         19  suggest that the legislation should provide that

         20  DORIS should have an oversight role, including in

         21  any contract that DORIS might enter into with a

         22  third party, the right of DORIS to terminate that

         23  contract, if the principles that I've outlined are

         24  not met.

         25                 And I would suggest to you that if
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          2  these principles, allowing DORIS to contract with an

          3  outside agency, or an outside library, established

          4  library that people would have confidence in, that

          5  the papers would be -- the archiving would still be

          6  subject to DORIS' supervision and oversight role,

          7  and an insistence that all FOIL requirements are

          8  met, that legislation that addresses those

          9  principles would serve the interest of all of us

         10  because it would ensure that the controversy that

         11  we've had that was reflected in the hearings that

         12  the Chair referred to, would not -- that would no

         13  longer be controversial, that it would also ensure

         14  that to the maximum extent possible the records of

         15  former public officials would be expeditiously

         16  available in a catalog form to the general public.

         17                 Now, I would have two suggestions of

         18  processes to how to achieve what I've suggested.

         19                 One is that the Charter now provides

         20  for COPIC, a charter agency that the Public Advocate

         21  chairs, whose representatives include

         22  representatives from the City Council, and I think

         23  COPIC could well be used to try to identify if

         24  there's any other principles that I've overlooked

         25  and come up with some legislation. And I certainly
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          2  would suggest in addition to that, that my office,

          3  Spencer Fisher, to my left, from the Law Department,

          4  has been working on this issue, and he over the next

          5  couple of weeks could certainly meet with your staff

          6  to see if the principles that I've articulated

          7  couldn't be put into some legislative form so that

          8  on a going forward basis, we could all be confident

          9  that records would be appropriately archived and

         10  publicly available.

         11                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         12  that any of you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I have some questions that I want to

         16  raise with regard to your testimony. But what I want

         17  to do is, I'm going to defer first to my colleagues

         18  who have indicated an interest in making some

         19  questions. But in the meantime, before I do that I

         20  want to acknowledge that we've been joined by

         21  Councilwoman Christine Quinn, Council Member Reed

         22  and Councilwoman Eva Moskowitz.

         23                 I want to begin with Council Member

         24  Michael Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.
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          2                 I'm sure, Mr. Cardozo, you understand

          3  the concern that many of us who took issue with the

          4  way it was seemingly stealthily done in the records

          5  are here today gone tomorrow, even though we may

          6  know where they are or we've heard where they are.

          7                 It just was unseemly, and this I

          8  think really caused the dust to rise overall.

          9                 In your opinion, why do you suppose,

         10  we've had 100 odd Mayors, not all of them so odd,

         11  perhaps, but that all of a sudden this is the first

         12  time that we know of that this issue has become an

         13  issue?

         14                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, Councilman, I

         15  wasn't there on December 27th when the Giuliani

         16  Agreement was entered into, and I'm not party to the

         17  thinking that went behind it. Certainly I've learned

         18  a great deal about archiving in the last couple of

         19  months, but I didn't know before I took office, and

         20  I've also learned, that particularly because of the

         21  budget constraints that we all face, that DORIS is

         22  under severe pressure, I think we all recognize, I

         23  think even Mayor Beame's records today are not

         24  archived.

         25                 Certainly, I don't think it's
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          2  appropriate to try to change, and this is what I

          3  said in my prepared remarks, I don't think it's

          4  appropriate to change the rules going backwards, and

          5  I think the concerns that had been expressed with

          6  respect to the Giuliani agreement have been

          7  adequately addressed in the plan that was the

          8  subject of the testimony that the Chair alluded to,

          9  but I do think that the experience has all

         10  identified to all of us issues that we all would

         11  like not to arise in the future, and that's why I

         12  think that the appropriate way to deal with this,

         13  because I think that severe significant legal

         14  problems are raised, and unnecessary problems are

         15  raised by trying to deal with this retroactively.

         16  But I think if we can all focus collectively on how

         17  to work together in the future, we're all going to

         18  be better off.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. And I

         20  think you understand that, I mean all of a sudden

         21  it's an issue when it's never been a problem before

         22  until the Giuliani era with this, that all of a

         23  sudden there's a problem with this.

         24                 I know you weren't part of that, I

         25  just wanted to get your idea about that.
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          2                 I have another question, too. As far

          3  as -- of course we can get it through the Freedom of

          4  Information, but wouldn't you think it's difficult

          5  when it's not in public, the access is not that

          6  easy; in other words, with an agency to get it?

          7                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I think that's a

          8  good point. I think the point I tried to make at the

          9  last hearing, whatever mechanism is set up, you

         10  can't archive records overnight. I mean, you can

         11  imagine the volume of material that we're talking

         12  about, that obviously it's going to take some time

         13  to archive it.

         14                 How do we deal with the records from

         15  September 11th, for example?

         16                 I don't think any of us would suggest

         17  that all of those records should be available

         18  immediately. There could be records of security

         19  concerns, for example. There's got to be some

         20  mechanism, while this material is being sorted out.

         21  So, whatever procedure is adopted, if you assume it

         22  takes three years, which I'm told is a short time to

         23  catalogue all of this, what are we going to do in

         24  that three-year period? We have to do something. We

         25  can't just let the general public come in and look
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          2  at it, and that seems to me what the Freedom of

          3  Information law is all about. And, therefore, if

          4  there is a desire by the public in the interim to

          5  get particular records, I think just like it would

          6  have been if there had not been a change in the

          7  Administration and someone would file a Freedom of

          8  Information Act request.

          9                 The same thing should be true while

         10  this archiving process is going forward. I can't

         11  think of any other way to deal with the problem.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I'll leave

         13  some of that to my colleague Eva Moskowitz, who has

         14  experience in that as well.

         15                 But I understand there is some

         16  confusing terminology and perhaps retroactively, I

         17  wanted to ask you this question, too:

         18                 Some say that the enactment of this

         19  bill retroactively is illegal; would you agree with

         20  that?

         21                 MR. CARDOZO: I do believe that to

         22  have this bill apply retroactively to the Giuliani

         23  Agreement in particular, is illegal for a number of

         24  different reasons. It seems to identify a particular

         25  contract, and in effect abrogate it, which in all
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          2  due respect to the Council, I believe is not

          3  something that you can do. As drafted, the bill

          4  curtails retroactively the power of the Mayor to

          5  take steps.

          6                 And I also would suggest to you to

          7  put the legalities aside, because I hope we don't

          8  have to have a disagreement with each other on that

          9  point, but for better or for worse, a lot of time

         10  and money has been put into the Giuliani

         11  arrangement, to tear it up, if you will, and to say,

         12  DORIS, you should do this, I don't see how it would

         13  serve anybody's interests simply to suddenly say

         14  after three and a half months, four months, I guess,

         15  okay, all the records should go back, start the

         16  cataloguing process, start this all over again, we

         17  may have to cut your budget for other budgetary

         18  reasons. I think the result of that would be a

         19  significant, very significant delay in public access

         20  to the Giuliani papers, which under the timetable

         21  set out in the plan would have been completed in at

         22  least a record time, based upon the recent past of

         23  three years.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So, you would

         25  suggest that it would only make lawyers working on
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          2  an hourly basis happy perhaps, if this was pursued?

          3                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, the lawyers in the

          4  Law Department don't work on an hourly basis.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No. No. No.

          6                 All right, thank you.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll hand this

          8  over to my colleagues.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me ask you,

         10  how much money has been spent so far that you're

         11  familiar with?

         12                 MR. CARDOZO: Spent?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: With regard to

         14  the papers that were taken by Giuliani

         15  Administration?

         16                 MR. CARDOZO: You would have to ask

         17  the Giuliani Center, sir. I have no idea.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You seem to have

         19  an idea because you posited the fact that so much

         20  time and money was already spent, as if I thought

         21  you had a number in mind.

         22                 MR. CARDOZO: I'm not familiar with

         23  the amount of money. I am familiar with what has

         24  occurred in the sense of records being delivered to

         25  Queens and the plan that was proposed and the index
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          2  of documents that was created, and I assume things

          3  going forward have a cost factor, but I'm certainly

          4  not familiar with the order of magnitude.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. So, I just

          6  wanted to make sure that you didn't have any

          7  significant amount of money that was spent. That you

          8  had to take into consideration --

          9                 MR. CARDOZO: I don't. I certainly

         10  don't know.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, thank you.

         12                 I want to hear from Councilman

         13  Vallone, Jr.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 Thank you for coming, Mr. Hess (sic).

         17                 First, for the benefit of my

         18  colleagues on the Committee, I have had a discussion

         19  with our Chairman earlier, and with Counsel,

         20  regarding some proposed amendments to this bill.

         21                 I personally believe that Section 5A,

         22  which says "upon the expiration of our City elected

         23  officer's last term of office, a Commissioner shall

         24  ensure all records be delivered to the Archives,"

         25  gives too much power to the Executive branch and
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          2  takes power away from the Legislative. I believe we

          3  need some legislative checks and balances in this

          4  bill. Chairman Perkins I believe was receptive to

          5  this. This could foreseeably result in the day after

          6  any elected official, or actually even before that,

          7  because it says the Commissioner shall -- a date

          8  earlier agreed upon by the Commissioner, could come

          9  into anyone's office and take boxes and boxes of

         10  material with no check by the legislature. So I

         11  believe that we need to put some type of legislative

         12  check within this bill, and I will be discussing

         13  that with Janet Cotton.

         14                 In view of that also, Commissioner,

         15  you mentioned you thought that you should be allowed

         16  to contract out to an agency regarding these

         17  archives; would you have any objection to those

         18  contracts being subject to City Council review and

         19  approval?

         20                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I would suggest,

         21  Councilman, this way: I think if an agreement could

         22  be worked out with a DORIS Commissioner, as

         23  frequently agencies do, they have to contract out in

         24  accordance with one form or another. There's a City

         25  contract process. I'm not at all sure it is going to
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          2  be in the public interest as to whether we should

          3  have a full public scrutiny, I don't know. I think

          4  it's an issue we should discuss. I'm certainly not

          5  familiar with the procedures that, for example, if

          6  you wanted to enter into a contract with Columbia or

          7  NYU or something like this, whether or not that

          8  would deter people from wanting to enter into those

          9  contracts.

         10                 I think the better approach is if we

         11  set out standards in the legislation as to what that

         12  contract must provide to ensure public access, to

         13  ensure that it's a responsible facility, to ensure a

         14  timetable that this will get done, to ensure that

         15  the City need for the records would be met, I think

         16  that's -- I would focus on the standards we want the

         17  contract to have, rather than make the contract

         18  itself subject to approval.

         19                 And if I could just add something to

         20  underscore the first part of your remarks.

         21                 I think the legislation as drafted

         22  says that all records would be turned over

         23  immediately. I don't think we're talking about all

         24  records, I mean we're talking under the Charter of

         25  records of historical, I forget the exact phrase,
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          2  historical significance, but I know, for example,

          3  every case that the Law Department may have closed

          4  in the last four years, we're not talking about

          5  wanting to say that there's no longer a purpose for

          6  the Municipal Records Center and that we should

          7  inundate the Archives with this, I think we're

          8  talking about records of historical significance.

          9  And I think, as I said before, we have to be very

         10  careful of the time frame, because you don't want

         11  all the records turned over, even if they're of

         12  historical significance, all records turned over on

         13  January 1st. I think we have to be very careful that

         14  we don't hamstring the next Administration.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I don't

         16  disagree. How would you recommend that we determine

         17  what's historical significance and what isn't?

         18                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, the phrase is

         19  already used in the Charter, and I think that's

         20  exactly why we have a DORIS Commissioner and his

         21  staff, to determine just that. Nothing is going to

         22  be destroyed. It still would be in the Municipal

         23  Records Center, but it's a -- I certainly would not

         24  want to define it here, but it is a phrase of art,

         25  it's been in the Charter since the Charter was --
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          2  the last Charter was adopted, and I think I would

          3  leave it at that and let the DORIS Commissioner make

          4  that judgment.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, DORIS

          6  would then, the Records Department of DORIS would

          7  take all the records and determine what the

          8  historical significance is and send that to the

          9  Archives?

         10                 MR. CARDOZO: At the appropriate time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Of course you

         12  realize that in the case of the Giuliani documents,

         13  DORIS was not given that opportunity, that in that

         14  case the records were never deemed of historical

         15  significance by DORIS, they were just taken. And if,

         16  in fact, we were to apply the principles that you

         17  offer, at least in this case those records, that

         18  contract, would be in violation.

         19                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, again, I don't

         20  think we can deal with a contract that -- the

         21  Giuliani contract. But I would say, Councilman, that

         22  the records, the Giuliani records, are either --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm not

         24  questioning whether or not they have historical

         25  significance, quite the opposite.
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          2                 I would declare that they do have

          3  great historical significance. I just want to make

          4  it clear for the record, that that principle that

          5  you have outlined for us, was not applied in this

          6  case, and therefore, it violates the contract, as

          7  you would want such a contract to be established.

          8                 MR. CARDOZO: I don't want to get into

          9  a debate about the Giuliani contract. I'm trying to

         10  suggest to you that we should try mutually to agree

         11  upon some principles going forward. I do think as a

         12  safeguard, because the records are going to be one

         13  of two things, they're either going to be of

         14  historical significance to be archived, or they'll

         15  be put in a municipal records, whatever it's called,

         16  and they would also be available if someone wanted

         17  them subject to the standard record policies that

         18  DORIS has.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And I don't

         20  think the contract would have happened with counsel

         21  review and oversight to begin with. But I do have

         22  more questions, I'll defer to my colleagues now,

         23  perhaps we'll have time for more later.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Council Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

          5  afternoon, Mr. Cardozo.

          6                 I agree with Council Member Vallone

          7  regarding Section A of this proposal, and it also

          8  seems to bring to mind if DORIS' duties would be

          9  expanded exponentially because right now they would

         10  have to take everybody's records, according to this

         11  legislation. And I know that LaGuardia and some

         12  other institutions that have looked forward to

         13  archiving say our records in the City Council, and I

         14  believe Mayor Koch's records are at LaGuardia.

         15  There's some difficulty with the language in here.

         16                 My original problem with this, as you

         17  know, or as you may know, is that I was concerned

         18  with the opportunity for the Mayor to come into an

         19  agreement in the last days of his office that

         20  circumvented standard City policy. And I would be

         21  curious to hear from you what could be done as a

         22  general rule law, general rule of thumb to prevent

         23  the Mayor from exercising that woeful authority to

         24  circumvent authority in the last 30 days or 60 days

         25  of his office.
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          2                 To my mind, this is a specific item,

          3  and, again, this happened outside of your purview,

          4  but just in general legal terms, because we all well

          5  know of our past Mayor's pension for secretive,

          6  being secretive and being possessive of his records

          7  where everybody had to FOIL them. But even beyond

          8  that, I'm concerned about the authority or the

          9  autonomy of any Mayor to circumvent standard City

         10  policy.

         11                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, it would seem to

         12  me if the legislation said that the records of --

         13  let's talk about the Mayor but it could be the City

         14  Council or any other public official, can only be

         15  disposed of in the following manner, and the

         16  following manner would be that DORIS would have

         17  control of the records, that DORIS could enter into

         18  a contract, with, as I suggested, a well-established

         19  institution under the following standards for

         20  purposes of archiving.

         21                 At the end of that period you could

         22  say the records have to go back to DORIS, you know,

         23  all those kinds of issues.

         24                 But I think if the legislation

         25  provided that the records can only at the end of an
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          2  Administration be done, dealt with in this fashion,

          3  that would solve our respective concerns.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But that still

          5  doesn't address the ability of an individual, be it

          6  mayoral or other governmental person, to utilize

          7  their power or persuasion over a City agency that

          8  they have some influence over.

          9                 I think that's something that we

         10  really need to look at.

         11                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I certainly would

         12  like to have the opportunity to explore that with

         13  your staff. I mean, it is certainly hard to -- if

         14  someone says thou shalt not in the legislation, I

         15  don't really have any specific suggestions to you,

         16  if notwithstanding the legislation someone violates

         17  the legislation, we all know what the consequences

         18  are of violating the law. Whether there's some other

         19  way to deter the improper behavior, if we defined it

         20  this way, I think is something we would have to

         21  explore together.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Also, I do

         23  appreciate you coming here today and sharing your

         24  ideas with us. My only other question would be, do

         25  you think that there would ever be an opportunity to
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          2  create an ability for DORIS to go back and do some

          3  reconstitution of where the original records were

          4  for the past Administration, prior to them moving

          5  over to where they're located now?

          6                 MR. CARDOZO: As I understand it, and

          7  I don't call the details, the records, when they

          8  were delivered to the Giuliani Center had on them

          9  various labels, so and so's correspondence, with

         10  dates and things like that. So, I think simply

         11  looking at the basic file cover folders, you could

         12  reconstruct some of that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right,

         14  thank you. I will defer the rest of my questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         16  much, Councilman Comrie.

         17                 Council Member Phil Reed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 I think this is a difficult

         21  situation, and I think the Administration is trying

         22  to find a way to balance, and I commend you for

         23  trying to do that, but I think I am a prime sponsor

         24  of this bill because I think that it is important

         25  that we set some standards here, and what is clear
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          2  to us is that it was the arrogance and the contempt

          3  of the last Administration for the rule of law, the

          4  rule of public policy that has been established for

          5  many, many years and many, many administrations, and

          6  just the sheer arrogance of it that puts us in this

          7  situation.

          8                 So, while you are objecting, and

          9  maybe perhaps even rightly, about the retroactive

         10  component of this law, the point remains that we are

         11  in this conundrum because of the behavior of this

         12  last Administration, and its probably crown and

         13  glory is it had always been in violation of every

         14  standard of ethics that anybody else would live up

         15  to.

         16                 And I think the problem also is that

         17  many of us experienced years of that Administration

         18  refusing to testify in front of this body, which by

         19  law they were required to do.

         20                 So, we had to take them to court to

         21  get Commissioners in here, we had to take them to

         22  court to get public documents about what we were

         23  spending money on, how many police we had in the

         24  street and whether or not we were treating people

         25  with their constitutional rights if they were WEP
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          2  workers. So, I think it's very important that we

          3  paint this in a context of where we were when we

          4  trustingly said good-bye to this Administration to

          5  wake up and find the papers had disappeared.

          6                 So, there's going to be a rewriting

          7  of history. That's why you have all these academics

          8  outraged, that's why you have the public outraged,

          9  and the politicians.

         10                 So, I would certainly hope that we

         11  can find some balance in here. And it is

         12  disappointing that we may have to go back, if we do

         13  this from the retroactive, and it's going to cost us

         14  money to perhaps start this whole thing all over

         15  again. It isn't our fault. That's not what started

         16  this mess, and I think for once and for all, it

         17  would be nice if we finally put that on the table.

         18  And perhaps it is a good time for us then to look at

         19  the issues I think Council Member Vallone raised and

         20  Council Member Comrie spoke of, is are we now being

         21  inclusive of everybody's records, and how do we make

         22  a statement about that.

         23                 But if DORIS is in fact to have any

         24  credibility as the keeper of the public record, I

         25  think there needs to be some clear statement that
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          2  that is what they are. The records go to DORIS, and

          3  then from there there can be decisions made that is

          4  in the interest of the public.

          5                 It is not in the interest of the

          6  public to have a private citizen snatch up his

          7  papers and take them away and then have us have to

          8  go and figure out whether that's there.

          9                 And as I think one of our colleagues

         10  commented on, I think we lost count of how many

         11  times we had to FOIL this last Administration.

         12                 So, you know, whether we want to talk

         13  about it or not, that is the reality.

         14                 There is a level of distrust. There

         15  is a level of disrespect that I think we're trying

         16  to find a way to resolve.

         17                 I am open, as a prime sponsor, to

         18  some continuing negotiation with us so that we could

         19  perhaps move forward and maybe we address that by

         20  having a resolution condemning the behavior of the

         21  Giuliani Administration, and perhaps even

         22  specifically the Mayor himself that has put us in

         23  this environment, if we're trying to find a way to

         24  move forward, but to not recognize how we got here

         25  would be a further slap in the face, as far as I'm
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          2  concerned.

          3                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, Councilman, as you

          4  noted, I was not here when this agreement was

          5  entered into, what I was trying to do to help the

          6  Council address the issue that I think you so

          7  articulately stated, is on a going forward basis,

          8  how can we assure the public, the Council, and all

          9  interested people, that the records will be

         10  available for scholars and others, and I suggest

         11  that to simply say DORIS must do it and you cannot

         12  contract it out, is not in the City's economic

         13  interest, because I think you're simply going to

         14  have to double or triple the budget of DORIS, and I

         15  point as an example to that the fact that --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Am I wrong,

         17  excuse me, but I don't think that's what --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Can you explain

         19  to me how you came to that number?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Right. I don't

         21  think that's what I'm understanding this to be.

         22                 What I think we're trying to say, or

         23  certainly what I am, is we're trying to restate,

         24  restate that DORIS as the responsive party has these

         25  papers. If it's in the best interest that we use a
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          2  private, or outside contractor to do this, but with

          3  that recognition this is a City agency that made

          4  that decision, not that we're going to go back and

          5  retrieve stuff that you already stole and see how

          6  much of it we can get back and start the process all

          7  over again.

          8                 So, I'm not sure that in this we've

          9  precluded any private company agency or whatever

         10  from doing it, it just says they belong to us.

         11                 MR. CARDOZO: I agree on a going

         12  forward basis with the principle you just

         13  articulated. And I think, and I'm suggesting to you,

         14  that on a going forward basis, that the way to deal

         15  with that is to say that DORIS should be the

         16  determiner. That if DORIS wants to size it as in the

         17  best interest of the City to enter into a contract

         18  to do the underlying archival work, it can do so

         19  under standards that the legislation should

         20  articulate, DORIS is in control, that Freedom of

         21  Information laws must cover in the interim. And that

         22  we, at the same time, have to address the concerns

         23  that Councilman Vallone raised, that we don't want

         24  every single piece of paper going to be archived,

         25  because that's not practical, but letting DORIS make
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          2  that decision, not some private party, and the

          3  concern that I expressed, that you don't want every

          4  piece of paper generated in December of the last

          5  month of an administration immediately turned over

          6  for archiving purposes because they may be needed on

          7  a going forward basis.

          8                 And I'm confident that we could sit

          9  down in a room together, at least I'd like to try,

         10  to sit down in a room together with you to see if we

         11  can't collectively draft legislation that would

         12  address these concerns that we've all articulated.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to

         16  make two observations.

         17                 Number one, it seems to me, and

         18  correct me if I'm wrong, that there really are only

         19  two significant differences that you have with

         20  regard to this legislation, others are there, but

         21  the first is the retroactivity, and the second is

         22  the privatization; am I correct? There are other

         23  details, but those seem to be the major stumbling

         24  blocks.

         25                 MR. CARDOZO: I don't know exactly
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          2  what you mean by privatization. I think that there's

          3  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: According to

          5  your testimony, they can either be archived by a

          6  public or private entity, in this case they've been

          7  privatized. That's what I meant.

          8                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I guess the devil

          9  may be in the details of some of the words, and I

         10  just think we could work together on it.

         11                 For example, I think the bill, as

         12  drafted, talks about contracting out with a public

         13  entity. I think that may not be in our collective

         14  best interest, because it would preclude DORIS

         15  entering into a contract with a private university,

         16  for example, or it might, depending on how you

         17  interpret the words.

         18                 The bill as drafted, as I said, talks

         19  about all records, talks about transferring the

         20  records immediately, and obviously, I think that the

         21  retroactivity point is a significant legal problem

         22  and inappropriate curtailment of the Mayor's powers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I wanted to ask

         24  you, you had mentioned, again, the cost factor, and

         25  I don't want to ask you to delve into areas of
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          2  expertise that are not, you know, yours per se. In

          3  fact, DORIS would be best able to address some of

          4  these cost factors that you keep raising. But DORIS

          5  is not going to be here, so are you prepared to

          6  answer some of these cost questions that you keep

          7  bringing up?

          8                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I think I can

          9  suggest to you that we don't have to be archival

         10  experts to know that for someone to take a look at a

         11  large volume of records and put them in appropriate

         12  cataloging, indexing, it's going to require some

         13  significant personnel to go through the records and

         14  make various entries. Someone is going to have to do

         15  that work. And if we can, consistent with the

         16  principles that we've articulated here, have that

         17  done by, at no cost to the City, by, for example,

         18  City University, or Columbia University, or somebody

         19  else, I would think that would be in our collective

         20  interest, rather than saying instead of the four or

         21  ten people to take but one example, and I don't want

         22  to hold myself out as an archival expert, I would

         23  think that would be in our self-interest to be able

         24  to have that happen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman Eva

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  Moskowitz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair, for your leadership on this issue. It's a

          5  very important issue, and I appreciate all the work,

          6  though, that you have done to bring attention to it

          7  and to get us focused on this issue.

          8                 I wanted to ask a little bit about --

          9  it seems this is as if what you call the lobbying

         10  retroactive is a problem, and you brought up the

         11  other points on the Chair's comments, is that you

         12  don't want to miss out on the opportunities that

         13  contracting out has. And I would agree that there is

         14  a benefit to contracting out, both in terms of cost

         15  and in terms of getting the stuff done more quickly.

         16                 What happened in this case was not

         17  plain and simple privatization, because DORIS gave

         18  over the originals to a private entity that, as I

         19  understand it, and tell me if I'm not correct in

         20  this, then contracted with Winthrop; is that not the

         21  case?

         22                 MR. CARDOZO: My understanding is that

         23  DORIS entered into a contract with the Giuliani

         24  Center, and that it was the Giuliani Center that

         25  then entered into a contract with Winthrop.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: So, the

          3  City is not the client in the arrangement that was

          4  made?

          5                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I don't know if I

          6  have the contract in front of me. I forget --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Because

          8  usually if the City is the contract, is the client

          9  --

         10                 MR. CARDOZO: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr.

         11  Fisher had the contract here. The contract says it's

         12  an agreement made between the City and the Giuliani

         13  Center. That's what the Giuliani contract says.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Who pays

         15  Winthrop?

         16                 MR. CARDOZO: The Giuliani Center.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay, the

         18  payer is usually the client.

         19                 MR. CARDOZO: Well --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: On some

         21  level. I mean, as common sense, the person who pays

         22  the bill is the client. So, I'm not a lawyer, and I

         23  don't doubt that there was an agreement between

         24  DORIS and the Center that said the Center could

         25  remove the 2000 boxes. But then there was another
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          2  agreement between the Center and the Archiving

          3  entity Winthrop; is that not correct?

          4                 MR. CARDOZO: That's my understanding,

          5  yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay,

          7  because that's the problem here. That goes to the

          8  heart, it seems to me, of why there's a problem.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: A privatization

         10  issue.

         11                 Let me ask a question in that vain,

         12  and I'm sorry to interrupt.

         13                 So, can Winthrop contract out with

         14  another company.

         15                 MR. CARDOZO: I'm not familiar,

         16  Councilman, with the arrangements between the

         17  Giuliani Center and Winthrop, so I couldn't answer

         18  that question.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm just seeing

         20  that we're getting further and further away.

         21                 MR. CARDOZO: But I would suggest --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: As a City --

         23                 MR. CARDOZO: I guess what I would

         24  suggest, simply bringing it back to legislation that

         25  might be enacted, is if you say that if DORIS thinks
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          2  it is in everyone's best interest that it enter into

          3  a contract with some third party to do this work,

          4  that the legislation could identify the appropriate

          5  areas of concern.

          6                 Obviously, you have to rent a Xerox

          7  machine, and you've got to enter into a lot of

          8  contracts to do, in effect, to subcontract some

          9  work. I know that's not your concern.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, it is. You

         11  know why? Because we don't know what these contracts

         12  are. Do you understand what I'm saying? There's no

         13  question that there may be a myriad of contracts,

         14  but it seems to us that the public should to some

         15  extent have some access, control, understanding of

         16  these contracts.

         17                 Right now the only understanding we

         18  have is the contract between you and the Giuliani

         19  Institute, right?

         20                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I wouldn't say me.

         21  I mean, it was a contract that was entered into on

         22  December --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Didn't you

         24  revise it? Weren't you a part of --

         25                 MR. CARDOZO: DORIS, with my advice,
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          2  approved the plan that implemented the contract.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, I didn't

          4  mean to be personal about that.

          5                 But the only thing I'm saying is, we

          6  don't know what the contract now is between the

          7  Giuliani and Winthrop, and we don't even know if

          8  Winthrop doesn't have an alternative.

          9                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I don't know --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Normally our

         11  process institutionally is to have some sort of

         12  oversight, some sort of understanding about

         13  contracting so that we can be able to tell folks

         14  what the arrangements are.

         15                 The privatization scheme that you're

         16  proposing seems to eliminate us from that.

         17                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, the contract,

         18  Councilman, does provide, for example, that the work

         19  will be performed by professional archivists. That's

         20  what the contract says. I don't know what the

         21  arrangements were between the Giuliani Center and

         22  the professional archivist.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But that's

         24  part of the problem, it seems, that this would not

         25  be such an issue, it would be much less of an issue
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          2  of the contract was between DORIS and Winthrop.

          3                 MR. CARDOZO: And I guess I would say

          4  to that, that, therefore, on a going forward basis

          5  with DORIS, if the legislation laid it out --

          6  because remember, the Giuliani contract does in the

          7  plan lay out various standards that have to be met

          8  and requirements, and on a going forward basis --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay, we're

         10  going to get to the retroactive part in a second,

         11  but I thought it was important to establish why

         12  there is a problem. And the reason there is a

         13  problem is because DORIS made an agreement with the

         14  Center to take 2,000 boxes of original documents,

         15  give it to the center, which then entered into a

         16  contract with a private entity. And in my view, that

         17  appears to be a violation of the intent of the

         18  Charter, when there was an explanation of the City

         19  having control over those documents.

         20                 So, I just think it's important to

         21  understand, because I am not against with regard to

         22  archives and in some select instances on other areas

         23  privatization and contracting out. I agree, it

         24  sometimes is the case that it's done more

         25  efficiently and more cost effectively.
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          2                 But that's not the issue here. The

          3  issue is an issue of control, and who the client is,

          4  who is paying the bills, and who the client is.

          5                 And the client is supposed to,

          6  according to the Charter, be the City of New York.

          7                 MR. CARDOZO: And the contract does

          8  say, and I think we've rehearsed this at the last

          9  hearing, the contract does provide and the plan put

         10  teeth in that, that control over these documents

         11  remains in the City of New York, and that's what the

         12  contract says, and the plan added in a number of

         13  features to ensure that that would be the case.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: You're

         15  saying the revised plan?

         16                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, one was the

         17  contract, and the contract says it shall be a plan.

         18  There was then about a month later a plan that was

         19  promulgated that laid out the timetable, the

         20  standards, the FOIL issues and so forth.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Okay. I

         22  just want to briefly go to the retroactive part.

         23                 You say in your testimony on page two

         24  that the bill is unlawful because it attempts to

         25  retroactively remove from the Mayor and his
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          2  appointees, power that they had at the time when

          3  decisions were lawfully made and agreements properly

          4  concluded. And further on you say that the bill

          5  represents an unlawful attempt to abrogate an

          6  individual act of executive discretion. My question

          7  for you is, the Charter obviously does not allow for

          8  total executive discretion; otherwise, the portion

          9  of the Charter that says there must be public

         10  control would be meaningless; would you agree with

         11  that?

         12                 MR. CARDOZO: It's a broad statement.

         13                 The Charter certainly has various

         14  provisions in it. One is, under certain

         15  circumstances the Mayor can enter into -- a Mayor or

         16  his appointees can enter into a contract. That's

         17  what happened under the Giuliani contract, and at

         18  the time, in my view, given the then state of the

         19  law, that was a perfectly valid and lawful contract,

         20  and I think what I hope we were discussing is how

         21  the concerns that have been expressed can be

         22  addressed on a going forward basis.

         23                 But I don't think, Councilwoman, that

         24  you can take a contract that was lawfully entered

         25  into on December 27th, and pass a piece of
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          2  legislation four months later and say that that

          3  contract is cancelled. I think that's an

          4  inappropriate --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Well, it's

          6  lawfully entered into in your legal judgment. There

          7  are lots of different legal judgments and I'm not a

          8  lawyer but my husband is, and lawyers seem to rarely

          9  agree on anything has been my experience. So, I

         10  respect your opinion as one opinion, but we have, as

         11  Council Member Reed mentioned, we have sued

         12  successfully, and sometimes not successfully, and,

         13  so, there are obviously a variety of legal opinions.

         14                 But it's not clear to me that -- you

         15  say that when the Administration has lawfully

         16  entered into, you can't four months later

         17  retroactively do things, it's not at all clear to me

         18  that that is what we're doing. It seems to me we are

         19  clarifying the law that exists, which we are fully

         20  entitled to do, to clarify the law.

         21                 And if that is not the case, my

         22  question to you is to explain to me why we are not

         23  simply clarifying the existing mandate? Because we

         24  do that all the time in other agencies, we clarify,

         25  because a problem arises from the language of the
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          2  law where something appears not to be clear, and we

          3  clarify it.

          4                 MR. CARDOZO: I think a four or five

          5  page piece of legislation that puts in with some

          6  interesting ideas, standards that have to be adhered

          7  to that previously did not exist, in all due respect

          8  is not a clarification, and I know we may disagree.

          9  But I think that you cannot, if the legislation, if

         10  the Charter as it existed on December 27th gave the

         11  Mayor and his appointees the power to enter into a

         12  contract of this nature, you cannot three or four

         13  months later articulate standards. You may call them

         14  clarifications, but standards that didn't previously

         15  exist and say, since the old contract doesn't meet

         16  those standards that we passed in April, that

         17  contract, therefore, must be rescinded.

         18                 I certainly hope we don't have to

         19  take this and have still another litigation. I am

         20  trying to cut down litigation.

         21                 I think that's why it's a very

         22  constructive exercise, to take a look at this on a

         23  going forward basis, so that my successor as

         24  Corporation Counsel some day won't be having to have

         25  the same discussion. But I don't think, in all due
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          2  respect, and, you're right, lawyers frequently

          3  differ, in my professional judgment it would be

          4  illegal for legislation to be passed that would, as

          5  a practical matter, abrogate the contract of

          6  December 27th.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: If I may

          8  interject, our lawyers inform us that the 90-day

          9  clause in your contract already allows for that.

         10                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I have great

         11  respect for your lawyers, I disagree with them.

         12                 It allows the Mayor to terminate --

         13  or it allows DORIS or the Mayor to terminate the

         14  contract.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Just one

         16  other word. It's not clear to me that the contract

         17  -- and the contract, and, again, I'm not a lawyer,

         18  but it seems that elements of the contract undermine

         19  the instructions in the Charter, and, so, you keep

         20  saying the Executive legally entered into a

         21  contract, I don't doubt that the Executive can enter

         22  into a contract, but in this particular case the

         23  contract has to be entered into under certain

         24  conditions, and those conditions are, unfortunately,

         25  not as well spelled out in the Charter as they
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          2  should have been, but there are some general

          3  principles and public control is the central

          4  underlying principle, and that principle was

          5  violated by the contract. So I don't know where that

          6  leaves you legally. It seems like a mess.

          7                 MR. CARDOZO: At the moment the

          8  Charter says certain things about public records,

          9  that the City must have control over the records,

         10  the contract says, the Giuliani contract says the

         11  City retains control over the records. There was

         12  another issue about FOIL, which I think the plan has

         13  dealt with. To now say you can only enter into a

         14  contract with public records that have A, B and C,

         15  even though that was not the rule before, I think

         16  changes the game in a way that reflects an

         17  inappropriate and illegal retroactive change that

         18  you can't apply to the existing contract.

         19                 And we may differ, and we had this

         20  discussion at the last hearing, and that's why I

         21  want to simply emphasize again that it is the

         22  position of this Administration that on the going

         23  forward basis we want to work with you to have

         24  legislation enacted that will avoid these kinds of

         25  disputes in the future.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is the legality

          3  that you have in mind the contracts clause of the

          4  United States Constitution?

          5                 MR. CARDOZO: It's a number of

          6  different ones, Councilman.

          7                 I think there's a serious issue under

          8  the City Charter of the curtailment of mayoral

          9  power, and that's an issue that unfortunately was

         10  the subject of a good deal of litigation in the last

         11  Administration.

         12                 In addition, and I don't want to

         13  claim to you to be a constitutional expert, but I do

         14  believe that if a contract was entered into and that

         15  it was lawful when it was entered into, that it is

         16  not appropriate four months later to cancel that

         17  contract by legislation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I guess to some

         19  extent the question is whether or not it was lawful

         20  when it was entered into to begin with, particularly

         21  since there are these conflicts of interest issues.

         22                 MR. CARDOZO: I guess that's what

         23  makes litigation and what we all agree we would like

         24  to avoid on a going forward basis.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman,
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          2  are you finished?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to just

          5  go back a second because you raised the questions

          6  about the contract, and I just wanted to point out a

          7  distinction, in terms of the contract that we have

          8  with LaGuardia is not assignable, and this

          9  particular contract is apparently assignable. That's

         10  a significant distinction that I think the

         11  Councilwoman was bringing up that concerns us.

         12                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I guess, again, if

         13  the Charter, as it exists today, doesn't prohibit an

         14  assignable contract, you can't change the rules

         15  retroactively.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Right.

         17                 MR. CARDOZO: If, however, that's an

         18  area of concern, I would suggest let's take a look

         19  at it together in terms of legislation, as to

         20  whether or not we want to deal with that issue going

         21  forward.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman

         23  Madeline Provenzano.

         24                 MR. CARDOZO: I will point out the

         25  Giuliani contract says that the Center may assign
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          2  this agreement to the City University or a fully

          3  accredited private university, or a public library,

          4  or a New York City public library.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is that all?

          6                 MR. CARDOZO: Or with a prior consent

          7  of the City.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm surprised it

          9  doesn't say or they can keep them and do with them

         10  whatever they want. I mean, I'm not quite sure

         11  because it says that what that means.

         12                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, Councilman, I

         13  didn't draft this. I'm reading to you what the

         14  contract says.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: All right.

         16                 It just seems, I don't know what

         17  purpose it serves in terms of just trying to resolve

         18  the problem of the retroactivity and the problem of

         19  the privatization. Because I think the contract

         20  itself is problematic for us. Do you understand what

         21  I'm saying?

         22                 MR. CARDOZO: I think I'm repeating

         23  myself.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: All right.

         25                 MR. CARDOZO: In our view the contract
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          2  was lawful, and it would be unlawful for the City

          3  Council to purport to rescind it, in our view, and

          4  this is where I want to emphasize, we would like to

          5  deal with you to deal with the principles, that I

          6  don't think we have a disagreement on, we may have

          7  some questions as to how to implement them, to try

          8  to solve this problem together on a going forward

          9  basis.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman

         11  Madeline Provenzano.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         13  sir.

         14                 I tend to agree with our legal eagle

         15  here. I think we should review the legislation, go

         16  over it. But I am really impressed by my colleague,

         17  Phil Reed. I always knew he was so wise. I think we

         18  have to separate the issues here.

         19                 Someone said that this piece of

         20  legislation appears to be directed to the former

         21  Mayor rather than future policy, and I think in

         22  reviewing the legislation and putting in some of the

         23  suggestions that were made by Mr. Cardozo, and

         24  possibly doing a resolution that would satisfy those

         25  folks who feel there was a great injustice by a
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          2  former Mayor, and maybe that would help us to move

          3  on.

          4                 I have a question. Someone said in

          5  the last hearing that we have, and I don't know if

          6  it was you or Anderrson, or maybe one of the

          7  archivists, I never know how to say that word, that

          8  there still was, there still were records from the

          9  former Mayors, I know Dinkins was mentioned and

         10  possibly Koch, and that these records were still

         11  kind of there, and nothing had been done with them.

         12                 It obviously wasn't you, but someone.

         13                 MR. CARDOZO: It wasn't me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, that

         15  concerns me, because I think if we're setting

         16  policy, which is really what we're trying to do

         17  here, these are the kinds of things that we have to

         18  look at, because if we have -- you know, I'm sure

         19  that these Mayors had the historical records in

         20  their records also, and if this is something where

         21  these kinds of things are just going to be sitting

         22  around for years and years, then we have to look at

         23  that.

         24                 Also, in terms of term limits, you

         25  know, everybody is coming and going now, so now
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          2  you're talking about everybody's records. And I was

          3  astonished to find that last year when 37, 38

          4  Council members left, they were told to pack up all

          5  their stuff and label it and do whatever, and it had

          6  to go I guess to DORIS.

          7                 But I followed on the heels of a

          8  previous Council member, and when he left, I don't

          9  remember anybody saying, hey, all your -- and that

         10  was my next thing, there were 11 of us that came in,

         11  and I would be interested in knowing if any of those

         12  folks had to take their records and send them

         13  wherever.

         14                 So, when did this all happen that all

         15  of a sudden all of this stuff is very important and

         16  has -- which it is, but four years ago it apparently

         17  wasn't important.

         18                 MR. CARDOZO: Well, I'm not sure of

         19  the details but my recollection is that the Council

         20  had entered into a contract with I think LaGuardia,

         21  I'm not sure of the details --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, then

         23  that's what I have here.

         24                 MR. CARDOZO: I don't know where DORIS

         25  was involved in it, but there was --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It was

          3  DORIS, LaGuardia and the Council, okay.

          4                 MR. CARDOZO: Something with DORIS and

          5  the Council and I think LaGuardia with respect to

          6  Council records. I don't remember the details of

          7  that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, then

          9  that's newly established, it's a newly established

         10  contract that would now allow City Council members'

         11  records to go wherever it is they want them to go?

         12                 MR. CARDOZO: The contract provides

         13  they go to LaGuardia, and I think I handed up a copy

         14  of that contract at the previous hearing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It is

         16  LaGuardia, because I have a copy of it.

         17                 But my question is, prior to that,

         18  did anybody care about those kinds of records? Or

         19  was it only Mayor's records?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, there's

         21  always been a great deal of concern about records,

         22  and the archiving of those records. There is no

         23  question that the Giuliani documents were catalytic

         24  in bringing out a great deal more concern about

         25  those records because of the manner in which they
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          2  were kept.

          3                 And I should point out to you that

          4  we'll be having testimony from Mr. Lieberman from

          5  the Wagner LaGuardia Archive Project that will be

          6  able to answer some of your questions related to --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. But

          8  I guess my point is that, we're really, really

          9  centered on the whole Giuliani thing, and maybe the

         10  time has come for us to separate it and really look

         11  at policy, and if we're going to change it, let's

         12  change it.

         13                 MR. CARDOZO: I'm delighted you said

         14  that, because our view is, we've had a lot of airing

         15  of a lot of issues, and I think we could informally

         16  sit down and talk about whether on a going forward

         17  basis what the key principles are and see within

         18  that, consistent with these principles, we couldn't

         19  enact legislation to deal with this going forward.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Councilman Addabbo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.
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          2                 Mr. Cardozo, I appreciate your time

          3  and testimony today.

          4                 I think we all agree, if I'm not

          5  mistaken, that when there is a certain amount of

          6  public scrutiny on a certain issue, with the acts of

          7  a prior or even a current elected official, that any

          8  steps taken, even those many steps today, in

          9  securing any impropriety that may exist, or any

         10  reason for the public scrutiny, any steps taken to

         11  eliminate those would be a good thing, I think we

         12  all agree upon that.

         13                 And I always agree that from common

         14  ground when we agree on the situation, on common

         15  ground we can move forward together, so I do hope

         16  that happens today.

         17                 On a positive note, though, would you

         18  disagree with the language in the proposed

         19  legislation that says that DORIS cannot or should

         20  not enter into an agreement with a private business

         21  that has any type of connection with the past

         22  elected official officer, such as Giuliani giving

         23  over the papers to the Giuliani Center?

         24                 MR. CARDOZO: That's why I suggested

         25  that the legislation might say you can only enter
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          2  into a contract with an established library,

          3  university, something like that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: That has no,

          5  again, that has no connection to the outgoing

          6  elected official officer?

          7                 MR. CARDOZO: Right. I think this is a

          8  question of drafting, at least theoretically, some

          9  person in a prior administration might end up being

         10  on the Board of NYU, and I don't think we're talking

         11  about that kind of issue. And if you're saying

         12  should the legislation say you can't form a private

         13  entity that would be controlled by the prior public

         14  officials, I think that's the kind of thing the

         15  legislation could appropriately address.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I do believe

         17  that there was a sense of, the reason why there was

         18  such an outcry against the Giuliani papers was,

         19  again, the timing of it all, which was mentioned

         20  earlier, which I think is a factor, and also where

         21  they went from whom they came. You know, the

         22  Giuliani papers are handed over to the Giuliani

         23  Center, and I think that, again, where a sense of

         24  impropriety exists, I would like to see steps taken

         25  to eliminate it.
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          2                 MR. CARDOZO: And, so, if the

          3  legislation said be given to a public university,

          4  private university, that has archival experience,

          5  private library, something like that, I think that

          6  would address that kind of a concern.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: With no

          8  current relationship with the --

          9                 MR. CARDOZO: Right. Only subject to

         10  the caveat I said about, and I'm probably being too

         11  much of a lawyer when I say that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Me, too. Me,

         13  too.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 We're going to go out of order for a

         18  moment because one of our colleagues has an urgent

         19  matter to attend and requires an opportunity to vote

         20  now on Intro. 68, and that's Council Member Phil

         21  Reed.

         22                 So, please share with us your vote.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chair. I have a meeting at 250. I vote aye on the

         25  Chair bill, as we call it. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          3  much for your participation.

          4                 That's the conclusion of the question

          5  from the members of the Committee. I just want to

          6  make one final observation, that sort of touches on

          7  what Council Member Phil Reed brought out a little

          8  earlier. I just want to establish again that this

          9  has come up primarily because apparently the prior

         10  administration, as was pointed out by the New York

         11  Times I believe yesterday, Davis Hirshon (phonetic),

         12  engaged in a whole slew of sort of midnight

         13  arrangements that this was one of that has had to be

         14  fixed. In some cases the Administration seems to

         15  have reversed those arrangements, and in this

         16  particular case the Administration seems to want to

         17  go forward with those arrangements even as the

         18  Administration would probably acknowledge that they

         19  were not the ideal arrangements to be made, at least

         20  in terms of principles that you put down, in the

         21  beginning of your testimony.

         22                 MR. CARDOZO: I would simply say,

         23  Councilman, that I think, as I said before, to

         24  change this retroactively of putting the legalities

         25  aside, would not be in the City's interest, and I
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          2  think the issues that have been identified,

          3  particularly the public access issue that was the

          4  subject of testimony at the last hearing, have been

          5  addressed in the plan that we discussed at the last

          6  hearing. We do believe that the way to do this is,

          7  as has been said, is to move forward jointly and

          8  enact some legislation that we can deal with this

          9  going forward.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         11  much for your testimony. I look forward to working

         12  with you on future legislation.

         13                 MR. CARDOZO: Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We're now going

         15  to hear from a second panel, and this panel will

         16  consist of Mike Wallace and Richard Lieberman, and

         17  Dave Palmer.

         18                 MS. FORD: Good afternoon. Would you

         19  each raise your right hand?

         20                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         21  testimony you're about to give is the truth and

         22  nothing but the truth?

         23                 MR. LIEBERMAN: I do.

         24                 MR. WALLACE: I do.

         25                 MR. PALMER: I do.
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          2                 MS. FORD: Please each state your name

          3  and your position and affiliation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I think you have

          5  to press the button.

          6                 MR. LIEBERMAN: Richard Lieberman,

          7  Director of the LaGuardia and Wagner Archives.

          8                 MR. WALLACE: Mike Wallace, the

          9  Director of the Gotham Center for New York City

         10  History.

         11                 MR. PALMER: I'm Dave Palmer with the

         12  New York Public Interest Research Group, NYPIRG, and

         13  I'm testifying on behalf of Gene Russianoff.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We'll begin with

         15  Mr. Wallace.

         16                 MR. WALLACE: I have a brief

         17  statement, which I'll get to, but I thought perhaps

         18  I would take the opportunity to just make a few

         19  comments in response to the testimony that we just

         20  heard.

         21                 Basically two points: One, I'd like

         22  to follow the money trail with Mr. Cardozo for a

         23  second and then to quickly talk about FOIL.

         24                 Mr. Cardozo said that one of the

         25  reasons, apart from the legality for not in fact
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          2  dealing with retroactivity issues is that there

          3  already has been a great deal of investment in the

          4  arrangement to date and it would be unwise and

          5  costly for the City to reverse that.

          6                 I think the Council should in fact

          7  inquire more thoroughly into the facts of the matter

          8  than Mr. Cardozo was able to come up with.

          9                 My guess would be that the following

         10  are the sums, or the issues that have been spent

         11  money on:

         12                 1) Trucking. I don't know if it was

         13  done at night, and, therefore, encouraged overtime

         14  charges, but it can't be a hell of a lot of money.

         15                 2) Rental of the Fortress. Probably

         16  costly, but, of course, that's their own doing.

         17  There was no need to rent it in the first place if

         18  the documents had been left in the City.

         19                 3) The construction of a woefully

         20  inadequate summary of what the documents were that

         21  could have been taken by my reckoning, you know, a

         22  couple of hours at most, of an assistant's time.

         23                 And then the cost of archiving. And

         24  in fact, my understanding is that to-date the

         25  Giuliani Center has hired a grand total of one
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          2  archivist. I don't know what in fact the person's

          3  salary is, and in terms of my understanding of what

          4  that archivist has accomplished in all this time, is

          5  absolutely zero. Because, in fact, they have spent

          6  all their time dealing with FOIL requests, which I

          7  must point out, would be totally unnecessary if the

          8  documents had remained at the archives.

          9                 So, what additional costs would there

         10  be? As far as I can see, they would amount to

         11  shipping them back. All of these above costs, by the

         12  way, should not be charged to the City, they would

         13  be entirely incurred by the Giuliani Center.

         14                 So, I don't see, in fact, money being

         15  a problem in that respect.

         16                 Two: Why on earth should the City

         17  Council assume that it is cheaper to go outside the

         18  City than to stay inside to perform archiving

         19  services. If we're talking about, not a gift, but

         20  we're talking paying a private organization to do

         21  this work, it's going to cost money and somebody is

         22  going to have to pay for it.

         23                 The only comparative figure that I

         24  have is, again this is just my understanding, and I,

         25  you know, may be corrected, but from what I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  understand, Mr. Cohen, the President of the Giuliani

          3  Center, has suggested that it will cost $3 million

          4  to archive the Giuliani papers, and that, therefore,

          5  because they are willing to pick up those costs,

          6  they are saving the City $3 million.

          7                 My understanding of standard archival

          8  practice suggests that to do this at warped speed,

          9  you were to hire not just one archivist, but let's

         10  say four archivists, and that the general cost of an

         11  archivist is $50,000 a year, four archivists working

         12  full tilt boogie on these papers for a year would be

         13  $200,000. Let's say it would take two years to do

         14  this, that's $400,000. There's an additional

         15  $150,000 probably involved in either digitizing or

         16  microfilming these documents for a grand total of

         17  $550,000.

         18                 So, at the very least, let's not make

         19  any assumptions about the value to the City's

         20  treasury of going outside.

         21                 Third, and last, on money. Somebody

         22  has got to pay, so it's a separable question about

         23  what's being offered here, which is that the

         24  Giuliani Center is offering to pay.

         25                 Well, if they're offering to pay, why
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          2  don't they pay the City to do it, and under direct

          3  City auspices, and they can save themselves a lot of

          4  money. The only loser in this deal so far as I can

          5  see would be the Fortress.

          6                 Second point just takes a second. The

          7  Corporation Counsel said that we should adhere to

          8  the usual process, the usual process being the

          9  FOILing of these documents. As he explained, you get

         10  documents in, you just don't throw them open

         11  immediately to the entire public, you do the usual

         12  thing, which is to go through a FOIL procedure.

         13                 Well, this is preposterous. It is not

         14  the usual thing. The usual thing is that they go to

         15  the archives, and professional archives, that is

         16  what they are hired to do to make the decisions

         17  about what obviously raises a potential problem in

         18  conflict of interest, or whatever.

         19                 I call your attention to the

         20  procedures on the national level. Presidential

         21  papers go to the National Archives, it is the

         22  National Archives that makes the decision about

         23  which things can get immediate access to them and

         24  which cannot. They do not, I repeat, not have to go

         25  to the Attorney General, and, thank goodness, in
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          2  this instance, for FOILing or vetting the legality

          3  of the distribution of the papers.

          4                 And we have an additional cost, which

          5  is up to the Corporation Counsel, in fact, if as he

          6  said the last time, he's going to be sending

          7  Assistant Corporation Counsels running out to the

          8  Fortress to get these documents, and apparently

          9  they're already under a flood of FOIL requests, and

         10  apparently, as I understand it, they had been

         11  informing people that it's going to be as -- in

         12  fact, Council Member Moskowitz at the last hearing

         13  said the notion that you're going to get this done

         14  in a few days didn't sound right to her -- well,

         15  they're already on record as saying, well, we can't

         16  even answer your letter for six weeks, and then

         17  we'll sit down and we'll talk about it maybe. In the

         18  meantime, they've got 50 other FOIL requests they're

         19  dealing with. This is hogwash.

         20                 I'm not a lawyer, my legal advice on

         21  this is, if, in fact, the Administration wants to

         22  save a lot of time, and they want to save

         23  Corporation Counsel the expense, and they want to

         24  save City Council expense, and they want to stall

         25  legislation, there is an easy, simple, totally legal
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          2  solution, they can cancel the bloody contract.

          3  They've got 90 days, it's written in there. They

          4  have the power to do so, why on earth don't they do

          5  that?

          6                 Now, my quick official remarks. I'm

          7  not a lawyer. I'm in no position to offer expert

          8  testimony on the provisions of the draft

          9  legislation, but it does appear to me that the

         10  "public auspices" requirement could be better

         11  defined, and that Gene Russianoff of NYPIRG has

         12  suppled a very good suggestion for achieving this.

         13                 I also agree with NYPIRG's suggestion

         14  for tightening up the bill's language to make sure

         15  that owning a public entity such as CUNY could be

         16  delegated archival responsibility for City records.

         17  The collaboration with LaGuardia Community College

         18  has been exemplary.

         19                 It also seems to me that the

         20  retroactivity clause suggested by the New York Civil

         21  Liberties Union would provide a firmer platform for

         22  moving forward.

         23                 I would like to make then two last

         24  points that speak to the larger civic context, which

         25  Mr. Reed and others have alluded to, within which
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          2  this issue is being discussed.

          3                 The first is, that as far as I can

          4  see, and I would love to hear from you if I'm wrong,

          5  there is no political support whatsoever for what

          6  the New York Times quite properly called a hijacking

          7  of public papers.

          8                 Apart from Mssrs. Giuliani, Cohen and

          9  Coles, I am not aware of any public figures or media

         10  outlets who have gone on record as backing the

         11  initial transfer records, or as opposing the intent

         12  of the proposed draft legislation.

         13                 Mr. Giuliani has enormous numbers of

         14  well wishers, and with considerable justification,

         15  but none of them has stepped forward to defend his

         16  actions on this particular matter.

         17                 I have been speaking about this issue

         18  in a wide variety of venues and in conversation with

         19  many people from all parts of the political

         20  spectrum, and I have found no one of whatever

         21  persuasion who backs him on this. Indeed, opposition

         22  to continued custody by the Giuliani Center comes

         23  from the most remarkable sources: when I was

         24  interviewed on the Bob Grant Show, he, too,

         25  expressed deep skepticism and disapproval about the
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          2  way these papers had been handled.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair, I'd

          4  like my name removed from the bill immediately.

          5                 Only kidding. Only kidding.

          6                 MR. WALLACE: All I can say is that

          7  there is a vast and deep reservoir on which the City

          8  Council can draw as it proceeds to right what is

          9  universally considered to be a wrong. And to do so

         10  without becoming vulnerable to the charge of being

         11  in some larger sense opposed to Mr. Giuliani's

         12  record or character. A mistake was made. Mayor

         13  Bloomberg, having had to reverse so many of his

         14  predecessor's last minute actions that it warranted

         15  a separate story in the New York Times, is clearly

         16  reluctant to take the lead on correcting this

         17  mistake. But I am confident that if the Council

         18  steps forward, the rest of the City will be

         19  exceedingly grateful to it, and only too delighted

         20  to put this matter behind us.

         21                 My final point is, that as a

         22  historian, I see this legislation as an opportunity,

         23  indeed, as Mr. Cardozo says, to move forward, not

         24  just to correct past errors.

         25                 The denial of the Tweed Courthouse to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  the Museum of the City of New York, while in itself

          3  another blow to the cause of presenting NYC's past

          4  to the people, might also open a way to press

          5  forward on this front too.

          6                 If the City can broker a merger

          7  between the Museum of the City of New York and the

          8  New York Historical Society, merging their perfectly

          9  complementary collections and resources and

         10  curatorial talents and trustee expertise, we could

         11  come out of this moment ahead of the game.

         12                 If a merger is made, and the City

         13  provides the $20 million currently allocated for

         14  MCNY to the joint venture, and also brings the new

         15  entity into CIG, I would hope two things would

         16  result.

         17                 First, the two institutions would

         18  collaborate on creating a world class public

         19  presentational History Center down at Ground Zero, a

         20  place that tells the overall story of the city for

         21  tourists, citizens and students alike, with a

         22  particular section devoted to the history of Ground

         23  Zero itself.

         24                 Second, the two would collaborate on

         25  building a world class research institution at
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          2  Central Park West, as part which an expansion

          3  building would be erected on its adjacent vacant

          4  lot. This would bring together the spectacular

          5  resources of both museums, including particularly

          6  the Luce Center's materials and, if all goes well,

          7  perhaps the Gilder-Lehrman collection as well.

          8                 If this were to come to pass, why not

          9  begin to consider the possibility of moving the

         10  Municipal Archives there too? It would continue to

         11  be a city agency, but would share in the greater

         12  capacity of the new institution's ability to gather

         13  funding from private and other public sources.

         14                 It would be able to gather its

         15  collections together from its inconvenient off-site

         16  housing --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm going to

         18  have to interrupt you for stealing my idea.

         19                 MR. WALLACE: Oh. Well, I take it

         20  back. I take it back.

         21                 It would provide state-of-the-art

         22  services in tandem with, next door to, integrated

         23  with on computer with the scholarly resources of the

         24  Historical Society, the Museum, the Luce and Gilder

         25  collections. For this to happen, however, it is
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          2  essential that the Archives be made whole again from

          3  the damage that this has inflicted on them, and that

          4  all its collections, including the Giuliani papers,

          5  be brought together forthwith.

          6                 I applaud the Council for its steps

          7  in this direction, and I hope that even grander

          8  vistas may yet open up upon the completion of their

          9  initiative.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 We'll go to the next panelist.

         14                 MR. LIEBERMAN: How do I turn this on?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You're on.

         16                 MR. LIEBERMAN: I'm on.

         17                 Good afternoon, and thank you for

         18  inviting me. My name is Richard Lieberman and I am

         19  the Director of the LaGuardia and Wagner Archives at

         20  LaGuardia Community College/CUNY. I am an

         21  administrator, an academic, public servant and

         22  archivist and wear many hats but get one salary.

         23                 The LaGuardia and Wagner Archives is

         24  a public agency with a mandate from the City

         25  University, from the Department of Records,
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          2  Information Services and from the City Council, to

          3  collect, preserve, publicize the history of New York

          4  City.

          5                 Our mission is to educate the public

          6  about our rich and fascinating past through our

          7  collection of original documents.

          8                 Now, we house and organize the

          9  private papers and I'd like to make that distinction

         10  clear. We have the private papers, not the public

         11  papers, and that's been a source of confusion in

         12  many discussions. We have the private papers of

         13  Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia, Robert Wagner, Abraham

         14  Beame, and Edward Koch. And on microfilm, we have

         15  the public papers of all mayors, from LaGuardia to

         16  Koch.

         17                 Now, there's been some discussion of

         18  the influence of mayors, and particularly, in this

         19  case, of Mayor Giuliani, on his own collection. I'd

         20  like to say that the wishes of various mayors have

         21  had direct impact on what we do and the papers that

         22  we have.

         23                 For example, Mayor Wagner set up an

         24  advisory board to assist me in oral history projects

         25  and to be a resource for questions on other aspects
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          2  of his papers.

          3                 We have expanded that advisory board

          4  to include people who served in the Koch and Beame

          5  Administration.

          6                 I still turned people from the

          7  LaGuardia, Mayor LaGuardia's Administration for

          8  advice.

          9                 Mayor Koch has closed his private

         10  collection, which we have, until a book by Jonathan

         11  Soffer is finished. In addition to mayoral papers,

         12  the LaGuardia and Wagner Archives has been

         13  officially designated, as mentioned here, we are

         14  officially designated as the repository for the

         15  papers of the City Council.

         16                 We have more than 1,400 feet of

         17  Council documents, and recently we added papers from

         18  City Council Members leaving office. And to clarify

         19  that, a letter did go out, which you probably have

         20  in your folders, to Council members who were leaving

         21  office, saying that with DORIS we have agreed that

         22  the papers should come directly to the Archives, and

         23  now we have the papers of those Council members who

         24  did send, who left and who did send their papers.

         25                 As a result of term limits, we've
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          2  become the institutional memory of the City Council,

          3  and those papers are open as of the moment they

          4  arrive at the Archives. We never close the

          5  collections. We immediately do a box listing and

          6  members who call us, and people who call us for

          7  information immediately are served without a FOIL

          8  request.

          9                 We also have the papers of the New

         10  York City Housing Authority, and we have an

         11  agreement, as we do with DORIS and with the City

         12  Council, that we are the repository for the New York

         13  City Housing Authority. We also have the papers of

         14  Steinway & Sons, located in Queens, and these are

         15  the major collections of our repository.

         16                 I have read the local law proposed by

         17  Council Member Perkins, to amend the City Charter in

         18  relationship to the custody of historical documents,

         19  and I support its intent.

         20                 I support the statement that the

         21  public record, "must exist under public auspices."

         22  But I would like to add something, and I would like

         23  to add is more involvement of educators, like my

         24  colleague Mike Wallace, to the language of the

         25  current proposed local law, especially in the
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          2  determination of "research or historic value"

          3  section b: disposal of record; destruction of other

          4  materials. It has been my experience that it has

          5  been crucial for archives to encourage access.

          6                 Just to say we've preserved the

          7  documents and we have them in this repository is

          8  absolutely no guarantee that a single person will

          9  come and use the collection.

         10                 An important audience to whom we must

         11  reach out to is the next generation of New Yorkers

         12  in the schools across our City. To do this, the

         13  local law that you were proposing should require

         14  educators from kindergarten to college to graduate

         15  school, educators must get involved in the process

         16  of determining what is of historic value, and how

         17  its existence should be disseminated to students and

         18  the general public.

         19                 This is a golden opportunity to make

         20  the statement that the teachers of New York, who are

         21  now required to teach document-based courses, are a

         22  crucial part of the process of making us all aware

         23  of not only the existence of these preserved

         24  documents, whether they cost $3 million to preserve

         25  or $3 to preserve, but the other part of the
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          2  equation, which is how will they be used

          3  constructively by the students and by the general

          4  public.

          5                 Now, this might sound self-serving,

          6  but one example of this marriage of archives and

          7  education now exists at LaGuardia Community College,

          8  we've been doing this for 20 years.

          9                 We house the LaGuardia and Wagner

         10  Archives, I'm the Director. Thousands of researchers

         11  use our resources from elementary school children,

         12  fourth graders are required to study local history.

         13  Fourth grade teachers had nothing. They have nothing

         14  in terms of teaching. They walk the kids around the

         15  block in some cases. Wouldn't this be a marvelous

         16  resource to get fourth grade teachers involved in

         17  preserving City documents?

         18                 We have college students using the

         19  archives, journalists and serious scholars. Now, to

         20  encourage the use of collections, you have to do

         21  outreach. We publish an annual curriculum for fourth

         22  graders, we publish a history calendar, we have

         23  exhibits, we have a web site. We actively, and I

         24  underscore actively, encourage the use of original

         25  documents, which once was just a private purview of
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          2  scholars and journalists, and we want all New

          3  Yorkers to delight in reading someone else's mail,

          4  to delight in the various points of view on public

          5  policy, as we have in the City Council records.

          6                 You know, what we're doing today --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to

          8  make sure you're not encouraging voyeurism or

          9  anything like that. Just for the record.

         10                 MR. LIEBERMAN: Just for the record.

         11                 You know, what we're doing today is

         12  fascinating for students to see that local law has a

         13  variety of points of view, and to have them study

         14  those points of view and to come up with their own

         15  decisions on what laws they would pass. And what you

         16  get in a class room is students arguing with each

         17  other over documents that existed in the past, this

         18  will become the past, right, and proposing their own

         19  legislation. It's fabulous stuff. It really is. But

         20  we need to have that piece in the legislation that

         21  teachers like myself and Mike Wallace and others,

         22  from kindergarten up, are involved.

         23                 Our commitment has been at the

         24  archives not only to preserve but also to a wide

         25  variety of public programs to educate the people to
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          2  just how exciting history is and how their own

          3  story, and this is the other piece, that their own

          4  story can become part of the archives. We have

          5  recently developed an archive of people's reactions

          6  and responses to the tragedy of the World Trade

          7  Center, and other archives have been involved in

          8  this.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 MR. PALMER: Thank you. Again, my name

         11  is Dave Palmer, with the New York Public Interest

         12  Research Group, and I'm testifying on behalf of Gene

         13  Russianoff, also with NYPIRG, who couldn't be here

         14  today, but NYPIRG felt it was important to come here

         15  today and support Intro. 102.

         16                 NYPIRG congratulates the City Council

         17  Government Operations Committee Chair Bill Perkins

         18  on introducing legislation to ensure that the

         19  archival records of elected City officials remain

         20  under clear public control.

         21                 We strongly support the approach of

         22  Intro. 102. It makes public control retroactive with

         23  application to the archival record of former Mayor

         24  Giuliani. These important records were

         25  inappropriately carted away at the close of his
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          2  Administration last December.

          3                 NYPIRG shares the view of many

          4  archivists and historians that the former Mayor's

          5  records and those of other City officials should

          6  remain under clear public control.

          7                 Private custody of these materials

          8  could result in difficulties in gaining access and

          9  places a cloud over the records.

         10                 To switch the focus of testimony that

         11  we've heard so far, I want to talk about some

         12  technical recommendations regarding the current

         13  draft of the bill, with the aim of best achieving

         14  the goal of public access.

         15                 So, first, on the effective date.

         16  Intro. 102 is effective as of January 1st, 2001.

         17  This would mean that its terms apply to the current

         18  contract between the New York City Department of

         19  Records and Information Services, and the Giuliani

         20  Center, regarding former Mayor Giuliani's records.

         21                 That's the right outcome and is

         22  especially appropriate timing. It captures the

         23  records of the many officials whose terms ended at

         24  the conclusion of 2001, due to the City's term

         25  limits provision.
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          2                 On enforcement, we recommend that the

          3  bill make it clear that private individuals have the

          4  right to seek enforcement of the law on who can

          5  control.

          6                 Intro. 102 prohibits the transfer of

          7  an elected officials records to any entity

          8  controlled by the officials' former staff or

          9  appointees, spouse, domestic partner or child. It is

         10  not clear whether the contract with the Giuliani

         11  Center would actually violate this provision, and it

         12  would likely be easy for the Giuliani Center to

         13  comply with this language.

         14                 Section 5B of Intro. 102 says that

         15  any such entity must exist under public auspices.

         16  NYPIRG suggests this provision be clarified by

         17  adding language that prohibits control of original

         18  City archival records by private entities.

         19                 We recommend the following provision.

         20  And you have this in front of you.

         21                 30011A definitions.

         22                 1) for purposes of this section, a

         23  private entity shall be defined as a not-for-profit

         24  corporation or other non-governmental organization,

         25  but shall not include a branch of a public
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          2  university, including the City University of New

          3  York and State University of New York.

          4                 2) The City may not contract or agree

          5  to have a private entity hold, maintain, or process

          6  City historical records.

          7                 And lastly, on what records are

          8  covered by Intro. 102. NYPIRG recommends the

          9  following changes to strengthen Intro. 102's

         10  provisions on the records covered by the bill. We

         11  urge that Intro. 102 apply to all officers and

         12  agencies whose records are to be considered for

         13  their archival significance, not just City elected

         14  officials and his/her staff and appointees, as the

         15  bill reads now.

         16                 NYPIRG urges that it mandate

         17  transfers at the end of each term of office or

         18  earlier to DORIS, rather than at the expiration of

         19  the last term of office, as the bill now reads.

         20                 And, lastly, that it track the

         21  definition for records in the New York State Freedom

         22  of Information Law, or FOIL, Intro. 102 basically

         23  retains the outdated definition of records that

         24  appears in the City Charter. That definition

         25  unfortunately supports an inappropriate distinction
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          2  between public and private records.

          3                 FOIL's approach is better, all

          4  records in City possession are deemed public, but

          5  some may not be subject to public disclosure if they

          6  meet a specific criterion for example under FOIL --

          7  I'm sorry -- for exemption under FOIL, such as an

          8  unwarranted invasion of privacy, as defined in FOIL.

          9                 Again, NYPIRG applauds the leadership

         10  of the Government Operations Committee, and looks

         11  forward to swift passage of an effective bill.

         12                 Unfortunately, Gene couldn't be here,

         13  so any questions directed to him I'll write down,

         14  and I can't answer we can get back to you.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

         17  very much for your testimony, and your passion, so

         18  much passion for papers is amazing. The Council and

         19  the City very much appreciate the fact that you have

         20  raised the bar, so to speak, on how we manage our

         21  historical documents, how we run our municipal

         22  archives, and I want to on behalf of our colleagues

         23  express our appreciation to you for that. And I

         24  don't think that we'll ever go backwards, in terms

         25  of that appreciation.
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          2                 Are there any questions for my

          3  colleagues?

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 We will call forward the next panel,

          6  which will consist of Janet Linde, Beth Haroules,

          7  and John Manbeck.

          8                 With all due respect to this panel,

          9  and the last panel that comes after this, I'm going

         10  to ask you to summarize your testimony. There is

         11  another matter that has to be voted on and the hour

         12  is getting late. So, if you can summarize your

         13  testimony, it will allow for us to have the other

         14  panel come on and at the same time take care of

         15  business of another bill that comes after this.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 Please prepare to be sworn in.

         18                 MS. FORD: Would you each raise your

         19  right hand. Do you swear or affirm that the

         20  testimony you each are about to give is the whole

         21  truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MS. LINDE: I do.

         23                 MS. HAROULES: I do.

         24                 MR. MANBECK: I do.

         25                 MS. FORD: Thank you. Would you each
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          2  state your name, position and affiliation. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 MS. LINDE: My name is Janet Linde,

          5  and I'm here representing the Archivists Roundtable

          6  of Metropolitan New York.

          7                 MS. HAROULES: My name is Beth

          8  Haroules, I'm a staff attorney at the New York Civil

          9  Liberties Union.

         10                 MR. MANBECK: My name is John Manbeck.

         11  I'm the Chairman of the Advisory Committee for

         12  DORIS.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: We'll start with

         14  Mr. Manbeck, please.

         15                 MR. MANBECK: Actually, I'm going to

         16  make my statement rather brief. Namely, I have read

         17  through the bill, and I think it is a wonderful bill

         18  that I applaud, and a lot of the things that Counsel

         19  Cardozo brought up actually are in place, as far as

         20  records. Records are turned over very sequentially

         21  to the Department of records and they're kept for a

         22  certain number of years, and they are archived. So,

         23  a lot of the questions that were brought up are

         24  already in the Council Charter.

         25                 But I support the bill, and basically
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          2  that's all I'm going to say.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. HAROULES: Okay, thank you.

          6                 There is, we believe, an important

          7  public interest in the professional administration

          8  and permanent preservation of the City's

          9  historically valuable public records.

         10                 There is also an equally important

         11  public interest in making those records easily and

         12  equally accessible to the historians, academicians

         13  and members of the general public.

         14                 We commend the City Council and Mr.

         15  Perkins for conducting hearings on the City's

         16  treatment of its archival records, and introducing

         17  legislation to ensure that the records remain in

         18  public custody and control and are easily available

         19  to the public.

         20                 We have submitted for the Council's

         21  future consideration model legislation that is

         22  attached to our testimony today. Our testimony also

         23  that we've submitted, addresses a number of

         24  technical suggestions that we might offer you on

         25  Intro. 102.
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          2                 My testimony today will focus on two

          3  issues. In your 3003 subsection 5 amendment, there

          4  is a delegation of DORIS' archival functions to

          5  non-municipal archival entities that exist under

          6  public auspices. We believe that that term, as you

          7  have heard from others testifying today, is vague

          8  and uncertain and we would recommend that it be

          9  clarified to indicate that existing under public

         10  auspices means a governmental entity that is located

         11  in the City of New York, a public university located

         12  in New York City or the New York Public Library.

         13                 With those changes we would submit

         14  that the last five lines of that clause could be

         15  deleted completely.

         16                 Our second issue touches on the

         17  differentiation between the record definition

         18  contained in the DORIS portion of the Charter and

         19  the New York State FOIL definition of record. We

         20  would recommend that the record definition contained

         21  in the DORIS provisions of the Charter be amended to

         22  track completely the FOIL definition.

         23                 As we had noted in our previous

         24  testimony, the FOIL record definition rests on a

         25  conceptual understanding that all documents in the
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          2  possession of a City agency or in a depository

          3  controlled by the City or agency records, and

          4  subject per se to public access guided by FOILs

          5  clear exemptions from disclosure.

          6                 Under the definition of records set

          7  forth in Section 3000(11) sub 2 of the Charter and

          8  perpetuated by Intro. 102, the category of records

          9  to be made available and committed to the control of

         10  the governmental archivists, and thereby available

         11  to the public, is constricted to a range of

         12  documents far narrower than those that would have

         13  been made available to the public under the FOIL

         14  process before those agency documents were

         15  transferred to the custody and control of DORIS.

         16                 The public's right of access afforded

         17  by FOIL to "agency records" that were maintained in

         18  the offices of public officials should not be

         19  constricted simply because the agency's records have

         20  been designated as archival material and transferred

         21  to DORIS. As a result, we would recommend that you

         22  adopt the FOIL definition.

         23                 Our testimony obviously touches on

         24  other additional issues, but I'd be happy to respond

         25  to any questions that you might have today.
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          2                 MS. LINDE: Before going into a

          3  summary of my testimony, I just wanted to respond to

          4  a couple of things that came up during the

          5  Corporation Counsel's statements.

          6                 And the first, and I'm sorry that

          7  Council Member Provenzano isn't in the room at this

          8  moment, but I hope someone will pass this along to

          9  her, it is not true that any of the records of prior

         10  mayors are untouched and inaccessible, and I'd like

         11  to reiterate that what DORIS does is they go through

         12  the same process that any archives dealing with

         13  large collections go through. You first try to

         14  establish box level controls to the point where you

         15  know what you can make accessible and what needs

         16  finer processing before it can be made accessible,

         17  and that process is carried out by DORIS very soon

         18  after mayoral records are transferred to the

         19  archives.

         20                 We all have collections that we love

         21  to process to a finer point, and as we get

         22  resources, we do that. But we don't stop access to

         23  records just because, you know, not every piece of

         24  paper has been indexed, which we would never do in

         25  any case.
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          2                 The other thing I wanted to follow up

          3  on, and this is to follow Professor Manbeck's

          4  comment as well, is that DORIS doesn't take

          5  everything. It's already in the Charter, and we have

          6  recommended in our statement that some of the

          7  sections relating to records management be

          8  strengthened, but DORIS deals with the lifecycle of

          9  the records. They take the records when they're no

         10  longer needed for active current use, they have

         11  record schedules by which the records are

         12  transferred to the records center, and then some of

         13  those records that have historical value are

         14  eventually transferred to the archives.

         15                 And you'll see in our testimony that

         16  we have recommended some strengthening of the

         17  records management provision.

         18                 The Archivists Roundtable basically

         19  wants to thank the Council for drafting this

         20  significant legislation, and for the opportunity to

         21  submit testimony.

         22                 This legislation will strengthen the

         23  foundation set down in the City Charter for the

         24  proper administration of public record and the

         25  preservation of invaluable historical documents.
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          2                 It is also our expectation that the

          3  legislation as ultimately passed will help to ensure

          4  public access to the records of City government.

          5                 Finally, with reference to our

          6  testimony on February 20th, ART remains hopeful that

          7  this legislation will provide the legal basis for

          8  the reclamation of the records of the Giuliani

          9  Mayoral Administration, and the restoration to the

         10  Department of Records and Information Services.

         11                 We have then submitted more specific

         12  comments on sections of the legislation, and I won't

         13  go through all the details of that now. But Section

         14  3003, which the NYCLU has always addressed, is one

         15  of those sections, and we are also concerned about

         16  the vagueness of the must exist under public

         17  auspices language.

         18                 As a part of that section, we also

         19  would like to ask the Council to take another look

         20  at the language that's used in the NYCLU draft

         21  legislation which we have had the opportunity to

         22  review, because the language in that draft tracks

         23  very closely the working relationship that DORIS has

         24  had with the LaGuardia Archives. And in my written

         25  testimony I have footnoted the section of the
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          2  transcript from the hearings in February where

          3  Richard Lieberman, you know, says exactly DORIS

          4  hired, DORIS trained, DORIS supervised, and those to

          5  us are very key points in maintaining DORIS'

          6  control, if there is any contracting out done.

          7                 The other thing that I wanted to

          8  mention, is that I mentioned that we did want some

          9  of the access provisions to be strengthened and some

         10  of the records management provisions strengthened.

         11                 We also support the addition of

         12  records management to the programs that will be

         13  supported by the municipal archives reference and

         14  research fund.

         15                 As far as Section 1133, we support

         16  strengthening this section to clarify the chain of

         17  custody from the City government to DORIS. The only

         18  change that we would like to see in the Council's

         19  draft, is the removal of the phrase upon request of

         20  the Commissioner of Records, and we would like to

         21  see this language replaced with wording that sets a

         22  schedule for transfers and fortifies the role of

         23  approved records schedule. And I go on to quote

         24  language that was submitted by the NYCLU.

         25                 As far as Section 5 is concerned, ART
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          2  hopes that one of the outcomes of this legislation

          3  will be the return of the records of the Giuliani

          4  Administration to the custody of DORIS, and thereby

          5  to the public. We believe that the most assured

          6  route to achieving this goal will be for the

          7  legislation to trigger a series of automatic

          8  actions.

          9                 We fear that dependence on the

         10  replevin clause of the City Charter will allow for

         11  the possibility of inaction by the government and

         12  lead to a stalemate with regard to those records.

         13                 We encourage the Council to explore

         14  all possible avenues that will result in the return

         15  of these invaluable records to public custody.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all

         18  very much.

         19                 Reclaiming, returning the records is

         20  consistent in the testimony that I heard from you

         21  and the panel before you, I just want to be sure

         22  about that.

         23                 MS. LINDE: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Now, there are

         25  those who are claiming to do this the right way
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          2  would cost us $3 million, and, therefore, we

          3  shouldn't do it, they should do it. Can you give me

          4  a brief assessment from your professional point of

          5  view of that position that has been shared by the

          6  Administration and the Giuliani Urban Institute

          7  representative?

          8                 MS. LINDE: I obviously haven't

          9  developed a budget for the processing of this

         10  collection, but I would say, again, that what

         11  archives do and what DORIS has always done is take

         12  records in, do what they have to do to provide

         13  access to the sections that can be opened quickly,

         14  and then try to get grants, try to get funding of

         15  other kinds to bring in people to do finer

         16  processing. And that's standard for every archive.

         17                 So, I think that the important point

         18  is that most, or may of these records, could be made

         19  available to the public without expending $3

         20  million.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 Is there a difference in opinion with

         24  regard to that point of view?

         25                 MS. HAROULES: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I just want to

          3  be sure. Okay. Because that seems to be a point that

          4  they raised and I just want to get some other views

          5  on that.

          6                 Let me again thank all of you for

          7  your testimony, for sharing your Friday with us, and

          8  for your passion with regard to this particular

          9  matter, and we look forward to working with you as

         10  we further develop the legislation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Does the NYCLU

         12  have a take on the retroactive portion of this

         13  program?

         14                 MS. HAROULES: Yes, actually we do.

         15  And we do support the Council's efforts to redress,

         16  as well as to address future issues relating to the

         17  documents.

         18                 With respect to the retroactivity

         19  provision, you can look at ours for an alternative

         20  option with respect to that particular provision,

         21  but when, as Mr. Cardozo averted to, there is a

         22  claim that a contract is being abrogated by

         23  legislation. There is a balancing test that is

         24  engaged in by the court, obviously there is a

         25  fundamental prerequisite that the contract that
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          2  somebody has claimed has been abrogated is valid.

          3  You'll have an initial issue here because you have a

          4  contract that was entered into by Mr. Giuliani and

          5  his Commissioner with Mr. Giuliani and his Center,

          6  his not-for-profit entity.

          7                 We believe that that contract is

          8  tainted by self-dealing, and that it should not be

          9  afforded the dignity of consideration that would

         10  normally be afforded to private contracts that are

         11  being affected by retroactive passage of

         12  legislation.

         13                 There is no prohibition against the

         14  passage of legislation that is retroactive. But,

         15  again, you get into the balancing, and here what

         16  would be balanced is the weight of the public

         17  interest, and there were some very, very seriously

         18  heavy public interests here that would outweigh,

         19  even assuming that you wanted to give these

         20  contracts some deference, you've got the issues

         21  relating to the significance of the documents that

         22  have been produced over the past eight years for

         23  example, and with all due respect, to a question

         24  raised by a Councilperson earlier, I think that

         25  historians, academicians, general public, things
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          2  that happened in this City over the past eight years

          3  represented a C change in the way this City has been

          4  governed, in the relationships between the Executive

          5  branch and the Legislative branch, all of these

          6  documents should in fact be publicly, immediately

          7  accessible and available, and on an equal basis.

          8                 So, you look at that issue, you look

          9  at the fact that the public has the right to know.

         10  Good government is open government, there is a need

         11  for people to understand and to pass on the

         12  historical culturally significant issues that are

         13  presented here. So, when you balance that against a

         14  contract that has the flaws and deficiencies that

         15  you're looking at, a court would relatively quickly

         16  reject any sort of claim I think that that contract

         17  had been abrogated.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 I hear echoes of agreement from the

         21  table.

         22                 MS. HAROULES: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you all.

         24                 We have one final panel that consists

         25  of Robert Morris, Thomas Connors and Jeffrey
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          2  Flannery. Please come forward.

          3                 Again, in the interest of time and

          4  because we have another matter that's pressing, I

          5  would ask that you seriously summarize your

          6  testimony.

          7                 I want to extend a great deal of

          8  appreciation for you being here, your patience and

          9  indulgence. You've been very helpful in helping us

         10  to come up with something that I believe will be in

         11  the best interests of this City.

         12                 Please prepare to be sworn in.

         13                 MS. FORD: Would you each raise your

         14  right hand.

         15                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         16  testimony you're about to give is the whole truth

         17  and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MR. FLANNERY: Yes.

         19                 MR. CONNORS: Yes.

         20                 MS. FORD: Thank you.

         21                 For the record, state your name,

         22  affiliation and where you're from.

         23                 MR. FLANNERY: My name is Jeffrey

         24  Flannery, and I'm the Chair of the Mid-Atlantic

         25  Regional Archives Conference.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 MR. CONNORS: My name is Thomas

          3  Connors, and I'm here to represent the Society of

          4  American Archivists.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          6  much. And, again, summarize. I don't want to be

          7  pushy about it, but I'm losing my quorum.

          8                 MR. FLANNERY: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Jeffrey Flannery, and I serve as Chair of the

         10  Mid-Atlantic Regional Archives Conference, or

         11  (MARAC). MARAC is an organization of 1,000

         12  professional archivists who work and live in a

         13  region that extends from New York to Virginia,

         14  including seven states in the District of Columbia,

         15  and I'm here on behalf of MARAC's membership.

         16                 I've traveled from Washington, D.C.

         17  today, and I'm grateful for the opportunity to speak

         18  before you.

         19                 As you may recall in February, before

         20  the same Committee, representatives of MARAC joined

         21  with other concerned organizations and individuals

         22  to protest the removal of the Mayoral records of the

         23  Rudolph Giuliani Administration, from the custody of

         24  the New York City Department of Records and

         25  Information Services, or DORIS, to a private agency.
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          2                 MARAC applauds the efforts of the

          3  City Council to rectify these unfortunate

          4  circumstances, and as reviewed Intro. 102.

          5                 First and foremost, MARAC supports

          6  the proposed legislative remedy in order to prevent

          7  the kind of actions which initiated the present

          8  controversy.

          9                 The main benefit of this legislation

         10  will be to give clear direction to City officials as

         11  to the appropriate manner to retain or dispose of

         12  City records. It will reinforce the City's

         13  commitment to free and open access of public

         14  records. With this in mind, MARAC offers the

         15  following comments on some of the specifics of the

         16  draft legislation.

         17                 In Section 3003(5b), the wording

         18   "exist under public auspices", MARAC is concerned

         19  with this phrase and the erosion of DORIS'

         20  responsibility as the principal caretaker of the

         21  City's records, and we have greater comment in our

         22  written testimony.

         23                 Section 3004(a) and 3004(b)-

         24  Management of Records by DORIS and Restrictions on

         25  transferred records - MARAC supports the addition of
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          2  these two sections as drafted by the New York Civil

          3  Liberties Union. The heart of this issue is access,

          4  and the Council's legislation will be greatly

          5  strengthened by adhering to the administrative and

          6  judicial procedures of sections of the New York

          7  State Freedom of Information Law, FOIL.

          8                 Section 3008 - Rules and Regulations

          9  - the inclusion of the NYCLU's clause guarantees

         10  records are not unilaterally disposed of and MARAC

         11  supports that.

         12                 Section 3011 - Definitions - MARAC

         13  favors the reconciliation of the Council's draft

         14  with the NYCLU's draft of the definition of the word

         15  "record."

         16                 MARAC feels a specific definition in

         17  the law is necessary in order to avoid future

         18  confusion.

         19                 MARAC believes these clarifications

         20  result in a better law and is willing to lend what

         21  assistance it can to this legislation take effect.

         22                 Most importantly, MARAC hopes that

         23  whatever legislation is enacted by the City Council,

         24  will ensure that the public's right of access to

         25  public records be safeguarded.
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          2                 The membership of MARAC realizes that

          3  this is a troubled time in the history of New York

          4  City, but the basic idea of public access to

          5  government records is a fundamental principle for

          6  any society which calls itself free, and if this

          7  principle is diminished, our public life will truly

          8  suffer.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         11                 MR. CONNORS: Yes, as I said, my name

         12  is Thomas Connors, I'm representing the Society of

         13  American Archivists.

         14                 The Society of American Archivists is

         15  a national association of professional archivists

         16  who work in government business, academic,

         17  historical and other archival settings. We are a

         18  membership organization of 3,500 individual and

         19  institutional members.

         20                 Now I will summarize. The Society of

         21  American Archivists applauds this process that we're

         22  involved in here, and emphatically supports the

         23  spirit and intention of the draft amendment. Not

         24  only does the amendment aim to better preserve the

         25  integrity of New York City's historical records, it
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          2  better ensures their equal access to all members of

          3  the public.

          4                 This is especially important when

          5  viewed against what appears to be an emerging trend

          6  by some government officials to restrict access to

          7  information contained in public records, information

          8  that should be openly available to people who want

          9  to know how vital policy decisions were made.

         10                 In my testimony, you can read it, I

         11  gave several examples of what's happening at the

         12  federal level of this kind of information lock-down,

         13  as it has been called, but you can read that.

         14                 Specifically, we wanted to just

         15  mention a couple of the -- some of the wording in

         16  the draft amendment. When you talk about such

         17  establishment must exist under public auspices,

         18  there is an implication here of City auspices, but

         19  it is unclear as stated. It could be construed to

         20  mean a public institution outside of New York City,

         21  and for that matter outside of New York State.

         22                 The second one, this is from Section

         23  1133(b) and reads, no records shall be destroyed or

         24  otherwise disposed of by an agency unless approval

         25  has been obtained from the Commissioner of Records

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  and Information Services, Corporation Counsel and

          3  the head of the agency who has jurisdiction, et

          4  cetera.

          5                 Despite the lines that follow that,

          6  that reinforce City control, possession and

          7  ownership of records, the wording as it stands could

          8  be construed to allow disposition other than that of

          9  destruction.

         10                 We would suggest that the word

         11  disposal clearly refer to destruction of materials

         12  not deemed archival by the appropriate DORIS

         13  officers, that this happens all through records

         14  management, records scheduling.

         15                 And the third is on the matter of

         16  retroactivity of the legislation.

         17                 SAA supports any measures taken to

         18  bring the records of former Mayor Rudolph Giuliani

         19  back into the custody and control of the municipal

         20  archives.

         21                 And I thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you both

         23  very much. Again, thank you for your patience. I

         24  very much appreciate the fact that you have in

         25  detail not only read but reviewed and commented on
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          2  the bill, and I recognize that you're from a non-New

          3  York City-based organization, or

          4  Metropolitan-oriented organization and a

          5  national-oriented organization, and, so, clearly,

          6  you've given a great deal of importance to what

          7  we're doing here, and on behalf of the Council we

          8  want to express our appreciation for the time and

          9  consideration that you've given for this. Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 MR. CONNORS: Thank you for letting us

         12  speak.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: By the way,

         14  where are you addressed?

         15                 MR. CONNORS: The Society of American

         16  Archivists is headquartered in Chicago. I'm from

         17  Washington, D.C.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         19                 MR. CONNORS: I work at the University

         20  of Maryland.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And you are at?

         22                 MR. FLANNERY: Right. Mid-Atlantic

         23  Regional Archives Conference has administrative

         24  headquarters in Vienna, Virginia, but I am from -- I

         25  work and live in Washington, D.C.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 MR. CONNORS: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Have a pleasant

          6  trip home. Come again.

          7                 MR. FLANNERY: I hope we don't have

          8  to.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: For other

         10  reasons.

         11                 Hopefully when you come back we'll

         12  have a state-of-the-art archives, maybe at the Tweed

         13  Building.

         14                 I want to conclude this part of our

         15  day by just pointing out that we will not be voting

         16  today on this particular bill.

         17                 I appreciate the fact that the

         18  Administration has bothered to join us and share

         19  with us their point of view about it, and I

         20  especially appreciate the participation of the

         21  public, and I want to take a special note of

         22  appreciation for the members for having been here

         23  all afternoon on a Friday, and having been

         24  questioned and taken in consideration, the points of

         25  view of the folks that testified.
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          2                 Clearly, this is an extraordinarily

          3  significant piece of legislation from a lot of

          4  folks' point of view and will require us to take

          5  into consideration some of the ideas that have been

          6  brought forward, some by our membership,

          7  particularly in terms of the role that the Council

          8  should be playing with regard to the so-called

          9  disposition of the archives in the future, should we

         10  have a role, or should it just be a prerogative of

         11  the Executive.

         12                 But there are other matters, some

         13  technical, that have to be looked at, some

         14  philosophical that obviously have to be looked at,

         15  and we will do that expeditiously.

         16                 But right now what I would like to do

         17  is conclude this part of the day and move to have a

         18  vote, a timely vote, on Intro. 68.

         19                 Before we do that, are there any

         20  witnesses here from the public that has a point of

         21  view that they would like to share with us about

         22  Intro. 68?

         23                 Intro 68 going once. Intro 68 going

         24  twice. It's the chairs bill, or the furniture bill.

         25                 Since there seems to be no witnesses,
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          2  I think we'll take a roll call vote.

          3                 We have a quorum, and I'd like to

          4  begin by recommending, by voting aye and

          5  recommending that the body join me in supporting

          6  this particular piece of legislation.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         22  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         23  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Have a good weekend. This hearing is

          3  closed. Thank you. Thank you, all.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:28 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 5th day of April 2002.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3
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          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23
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